
SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 

FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

JU N E  30, 2019 AND 2018 



SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I N DEPENDENT AU DITORS' REPORT 

MANAG EM ENT'S DISCUSSION AN D ANALYSIS 

FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
Statements of Net Position 
Statements of Reven ues, Expenses, and Cha nges i n  

Net Position  
Statements of Cash Flows - D i rect Method 

NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

ACCOM PANYI NG I N FORMATION 
Sched u les of Genera l  Fund Reven ues -Budgetary Basis 
Sched u les of Genera l  Fund Expenditures 
Schedu le  of Expend itures of Federa l  Awards 
Notes to Schedu le  of Expend itu res of Federa l Awards 
SFA Progra ms -Aud it I nformation 
Sched ule of Cafeteria and Dormitory Ba lances and Activity 
Sched ule of Bookstore Ba lances and Activity 
Sched u le of Student Activities Ba lances and Activity 

REPO RTS REQU I RED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS AND T H E  U N I FORM G U I DANCE 
Report on I nterna l  Control Over F inanc ia l  Reporti ng a nd on 

Com pl iance and Other Matters Based on an Aud it of 
F inancia l  Statements Performed i n  Accorda nce with 
Government Auditing Standards 

I ndependent Aud itors' Report on Compl iance for Each Major 
Progra m and on  I nterna l  Control Over Compl iance Requ i red 
by the U n iform G u idance 

SCH E DU LE OF FI ND I NGS AN D QUEST IONED COSTS 

SUM MARY SCH EDULE OF PR IOR AU D IT FI ND INGS 

Page 

1 - 3  

4 - 12 

13 - 14 

15-16 
17 - 18 

19 - 32 

3 3  
34 - 35 
36 - 37 

38 
39 
40 
41 
42 

43 - 44 

45 - 46 

47 - 48 

49 



DANA F. COLE 
& CO M PANYLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

I N D EPEN DENT AU D ITORS' REPO RT 

To the Board of Governors 
Southeast Com mun ity Col lege Area 
L inco ln ,  Nebraska 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have a ud ited the accompanying statements of net position of Southeast Com m u n ity Col lege Area 
as of J u ne 30, 2019 a nd 2018, and the re lated statements of revenues,  expenses, a n d  changes i n  
net position a n d  cash flows for the years then ended which col lective ly com prise the Col lege's basic 
fi nanc ia l  statements as l isted i n  the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsib le for the preparation a nd fa i r  presentation of these fi nanc ia l  statements 
i n  accordance with accounting princ ip les genera l ly accepted in the U n ited States of America ;  th is 
inc lu des the design ,  i m plementation ,  and  ma intenance of i nternal  control relevant to the preparation 
a nd fa i r  presentation of financia l  statements that a re free from materia l m isstatement, whether d ue 
to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our  respons ib i l ity is to express an  opin ion on  these fina ncia l statements based on our  a ud its. We d id 
not a ud it the fi nancia l  statements of the Southeast Com m u n ity Col lege Fou ndation ,  which represent 
10 percent, 15 percent, a nd 6 percent, respectively, of the assets, net position ,  a nd reven ues of the 
Southeast Com mun ity Col lege Area . Those statements were a ud ited by other a ud itors whose report 
has been furn ished to us, and  our  op in ion ,  i nsofar as it relates to the a mou nts inc luded for the South­
east Commun ity Col lege· Fou ndation ,  is based solely on the report of the other a ud itors . We condu cted 
our  a ud its in accordance with a uditing standards gener_a l ly accepted i n  the Un ited States of America 
a nd the standards appl icable to financia l  audits conta ined i n  Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Com ptrol ler  Genera l  of the U n ited States. Those sta ndards requ i re that we p lan a nd perform 
the aud it to obta i n  reasonable  assurance a bout whether the financia l  statements are free of material 
m isstatement. 

An aud it i nvolves perform i ng procedu res to obta in  aud it evidence a bout the a mou nts and  d isclo­
sures i n  the financia l  statements. The proced u res selected depend on the auditors' judgment, i n­
c lud ing the assessment of the risks of materia l m isstatement of the financia l  statements, whether 
d ue to fraud or error. I n  making those r isk assessments, the a ud itor considers i nterna l  contro l rele­
va nt to the entity's prepa ration and fa i r  presentation of the financ ia l  statements in order  to design 
a ud it proced u res that a re appropriate i n  the c i rcu mstances, but not for the purpose of expressing a n  
op in ion on the effectiveness of the entity's i nterna l contro l .  Accord ingly, w e  express n o  such op in ion. 
An aud it a lso i ncl udes eva luating the a ppropriateness of accou nti ng pol ic ies used and  the reason a­
bleness of sign ificant accou nti ng esti mates made by management, as wel l  as eva luati ng  the overa l l  
presentation of the fi nancia l  statements. 
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We bel ieve that the a ud it evidence we have obta ined is sufficient and a ppropriate to p rovide a basis 
for our  aud it opin ion .  

Opinion 

I n  our  opin ion ,  based on our aud it a nd the report of other aud itors, the fina nc ia l  stateme nts referred 
to a bove present fa i rly the financ ia l  position of Southeast Comm u n ity Col lege Area , as of June 30, 
2019 and 2018, and the resu lts of its operations and cash flows for the yea rs then ended ,  i n  accord­
a nce with accounti ng pri nc ip les genera l ly accepted in the U n ited States of America . 

Other Matters 

Required Supplemental Information 

Accou nting  principles genera l ly accepted i n  the U nited States of America requ i re that the manage­
ment's d iscussion and ana lysis on pages 4 th rough 12 be presented to su pplement the basic fi na ncial  
statements. Such information ,  a lthough not a pa rt of the basic financia l statements, is req u i red by the 
Governmenta l  Accou nti ng Standards Boa rd, who considers it to be an  essentia l  part of fina ncia l report­
i ng  for p lacing the basic financ ia l  statements i n  a n  appropriate operationa l ,  economic, o r  h istorica l 
context. We have appl ied certa i n  l im ited procedu res to the req u i red supplementary i nformation i n  ac­
cordance with aud iti ng sta ndards genera l ly accepted in the U n ited States of America, w h ich consisted 
of i nqu i ries of management a bout the methods of prepa ri ng the i nformation and com pa ring the infor­
mation for consistency with management's responses to our i nqu i ries, the basic fi nanci a l  statements, 
and  other knowledge we obta i ned d u ring our  a ud it of the basic fi na ncia l statements.  We do not ex­
press a n  opin ion or provide a ny assurance on the i nformation because the l i m ited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an  opi n ion or provide a ny assu rance. 

Other Information 

Our  aud it was conducted for the purpose of form i ng a n  op in ion o n  the financ ia l  statements that col­
lectively comprise Southeast Com m u n ity Col lege Area's financia l statements as a whole .  The sched­
u les of genera l  fund revenues -budgetary basis; sched u les of genera l  fu nd expend itures - budgetary 
basis; and schedu les of expend itures of federa l  awards, as req u i red by Title 2 U .S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR)  Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Re­

quirements for Federal Awards, are presented for purposes of add itional  a na lysis and  a re not a re­
q u i red part of the financ ia l  statements.  

The sched u les of genera l  fu nd revenues -budgetary basis, sched u les of genera l  fund  expend itures -
budgetary basis, sched u les of ba lances and  activity, and  sched u les of expend itures of federa l  awa rds 
a re the responsib i l ity of ma nagement and were derived from and  relate d i rectly to the u nderlying ac­
counting a nd other records used to prepare the fi nancia l  statements.  The i nformation has been sub­
jected to the a ud iti ng procedu res a ppl ied i n  the aud it of the fi nancia l statements a nd certa in  add itional 
proced ures, includ ing compa ring and reconc i l i ng such i nformation d i rectly to the u nderlying accounting 
and other records used to prepa re the financ ia l  statements or to the financia l  statements themselves, 
a nd other add itiona l procedu res i n  accordance with aud iting standards genera l ly accepted i n  the U n ited 
States of America . I n  our  opi n ion ,  the information is fa i rly stated in a l l  materia l  respects i n  re lation to the 
fi nancia l  statements as a whole.  
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Report Issued i n  Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

I n  accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have a lso issued o u r  report dated Novem-
ber 15, 2019,  on our  consideration of the Col lege's i nternal  contro l over fin ancia l reporting a n d  on our  
tests of its com pl iance with certa in  provisions of laws,  regu lations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of o u r  testing of interna l  control 
over fi nanc ia l  reporti ng a nd compl iance a nd the resu lts of that testing, a n d  not to provide an opin ion 
on i nterna l control over financia l reporting or on compl iance. That report is a n  i ntegra l part of an a ud it 
performed in  accordance with Government Auditing Standards i n  consideri ng Southeast Com m u n ity 
Col lege Area's i nterna l control over fi nancia l  reporting a nd compl iance. 

Linco ln ,  Nebraska 
November 15 , 2019 
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
MANAG EM ENT'S DISCUSSION AN D ANALYSIS 

Th is section of Southeast Com m u n ity Col lege Area's a n nua l  fi nancia l report presents our d iscussion 
and ana lys is of the Col lege's fi nancia l  performance d u ring the fisca l yea rs e nded J u ne 30,  2019 and 
2018. Please read i t  i n  conjunction with the Col lege's fi na ncia l statements, which fo l low th is section.  

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

Th is report consists of three basic fi na ncia l  statements. The statement of net positio n; the state­
ment of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position; and the statement of cash flows provide 
i nformation on the Col lege as a whole and present a long-term view of the Col lege's fi nances. 

THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AND THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 
IN NET POSITION 

One of the most important q uestions asked about the Col lege's finances is,  " Is Southeast Com mu n ity 
Col lege Area as a whole better off as a resu lt of the year's activities?" The Statement of N et Assets 
and the Statement of Reven ues, Expenses, and Changes i n  Net Assets report informatio n  on the Col­
lege as a whole and on its activities in a way that helps a nswer th is q uestion .  When revenues and 
other su pport exceed expenses, the result is  a n  increase in  net assets. When the reverse occu rs,  the 
resu lt is a decrease in net assets. The relationsh i p  between revenues and expenses may be thought 
of as the Col lege's operating resu lts. 

These statements inc lude a l l  assets a nd l iab i l it ies using the accrua l  basis of accounting,  which is 
s im i la r  to the accou nting used by most private-sector com pa n ies. All of the cu rrent yea r's revenues 
and expenses a re ta ken i nto accou nt regard less of when cash is received or paid .  

These two statements report the Col lege's net assets and changes i n  them. You can th i n k  of  the Col­
lege's net assets (the d ifference between assets and l iab i l ities) as one way to measu re the Col lege's 
f inancia l  hea lth or fi nancia l position .  Over ti me, i ncreases or decreases in the Col lege's net assets 
are one ind icator of whether its fi nancia l  hea lth is i mproving or deteriorating. You w i l l  n eed to con­
sider other nonfi nancia l  factors, however, such as enro l lment trends, p lacement resu lts, program 
qua l ity, cond ition of bu i ld ings, cam pus safety, and other factors to assess the overa l l  hea lth of the 
i nstitution .  

Figure 1. 

Southeast Community College Area Net Assets 
(in thousands of dollars) 

2019 

2018 

2017 

Invested in capital assets net of 
related debt 

• •••• •• • ff ......... ...... . 
-

-

Restricted 

$0 $20,000 $40,000 $60,000 $0 $20,000 $40,000 $60,000 
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Unrestricted 
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Cu rrent assets 
Noncu rrent assets 
Ca pita I assets 

Tota l assets 

Cu rrent l iab i l ities 
Noncurrent l iab i l ities 

Tota l l ia bi l it ies 

Net Position 

SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
MANAG EMENT'S DISCUSSION AN D ANALYSIS 

TABLE 1 
N ET POSITION 

( in  thousands of do l lars) 

2019 

149,366 
875 

101, 162 

2 51,403 

15,826 
79,516 

95,342 

I nvested in  ca pita l assets, net of re lated debt 
Restricted 

74,879 
22,642 
58, 540 Unrestricted 

Total net position 156,061 

2018 

136, 147 
920 

75,365 

2 12 ,432 

8,482 
60,486 

68,968 

75,365 
14,634 
53,465 

143,464 

2017 

63,431 
720 

70,812 

134,963 

5,748 

5,748 

70,812 
10, 179 
48,224 

129,215 

Tota l assets of the Col lege increased 34% ($25, 797 thousa nds);  l iab i l it ies increased 38.2% ($26,37 4 
thousa nds; a nd net assets increased by 8.8% ($ 12 ,597 thousands) a nd 11.0% ($14,250 thousa nds) 
for the fiscal year ended J une 30, 2019 a nd 2018. The changes a re d ue to the fol lowi n g  factors: 

• An increase i n  capita l assets is due to the projects associated with the Certificates of Partici­
pation and  R evenue Bonds issued in ca lendar 2018. 

• An increase i n  l iab i l ities is primari ly d ue to the issuance of the Fac i l ities Revenue Bonds, Se­
ries 2018 in September 2018. 

• An increase i n  the un restricted net position due to lower-tha n  budgeted expenses. 
• An increase i n  restricted net position due to u nspent ca pita l  improvement levy. 
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SOUTHEAST COM M U NITY COLLEGE AREA 
MANAG EM ENT'S DISCUSSION AN D ANALYSIS 

TABLE 2 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

( i n  thousands of do l lars) 

2019 2018 2017 

Operating revenue 
Student tu ition and  fees 16,029 15,081 17,646 
G ra nts a nd contracts 200 28 11 
Sales educational  departments 1,053 1,051 1 ,146 
Auxi l ia ry enterprises 7,650 8,334 8,587 

Other 1,835 2 ,251 1,63 1 

Tota l operat ing revenue 26,767 26,745 29,02 1 

Operating expenses 
Personnel services 71,860 70,844 70,982 

Operating expenses 26,053 27,866 27,833 

Travel 386 418 591 

Capita l assets not capita l i zed 5,022 2 ,578 2 ,718 

Depreciation 5,733 5,455 5 ,427 

Tota l operating expenses 109,054 107, 161 107,551 

Net operating loss (82 , 287) (80,416) (78,530) 

Nonoperati ng revenue 
State a id 27,373 27,461 27,096 

Property taxes 40, 662 41,260 35,983 

G ra nts and contracts 13,741 13,865 14,763 

I nvestment i ncome 2 ,302 528 158 
I nterest on i ndebted ness (2 ,774) ( 149) 

Net nonoperating reven ue 81,304 82,965 78,000 

Other revenue 
Capita l appropriations 11,469 11,655 5,889 

Ca pita l grants 2 ,016 
Gain on d isposa l of assets 95 45 125 

Net other revenue 13,580 11,700 6,014 

I ncrease i n  net assets 12,597 14,249 5 ,484 

Net Position 
Net position ,  begi n n ing of year 143, 464 129 ,215 123,731 

Net position ,  end of yea r  156,061 143,464 129,215 
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N l1Y COLLEG E AREA 
MANAG E M ENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

REVENUES 

Figure 2. 

Southeast Community College Area Revenues 
(in thousands of dollars) 

Operating revenue 

2019 

2018 

2017 -
,$0 $40,000 $80,000 $0 

Nonoperating revenue 

•• 
I 

$40,000 $80,000 $0 

Comments regard ing revenues a re as fol lows: 

Other revenue 

$40,000 $80,000 

• Tu ition and fee rates for 2018 - 2019 i ncreased by . 7 4% a nd the a l lowance for scho larsh i ps 
decreased by 20% ($1,312 thousands) .  The additional  revenues attributed to a n  increase in  
tu ition and fees was partia l ly offset by  a sl ight decrease in  enro l l ment. 

• I n  fisca l 2018 - 2019 va luations i ncreased by 2 .8%, the genera l fu nd and C IF  levy rema ined 
unchanged at 7 .07 cents and 2 .0  cents, respectively, per $ 100 va luation .  Tota l property tax 
levy was 9 .07 cents, 9.07 cents, and  7 .52 cents per $ 100 valuation for fisca l 2018 - 2019,  
2017 - 2018, a nd 2016 - 2017, respective ly. 

EXPENSES 

Figure 3. 

Southeast Community College Area Expenses 
(in thousands of dollars) 

Personnel services Operating and Travel Depreciation 

2019 I 
201a - I 

' . ··. -
... . ' 

·. -� .. . - ·.· . . � ... 

2017 mllllllll 
$0 $25,000 $50,000 $0 $25,000 $50,000 $0 $25,000 $50,000 

Comments a bout expenses a re as fol lows: 

I 
I 

Other 

$0 $25,000 $50,000 

• Personnel  services conti nue to be the pr imary expend itu re category and  a re 66% of tota l 
operati ng expenses. 

• Tota l expend itu res increased by 1.8% ($1,893 thousands) i n  fisca l 2018 - 2019. Tota l ex­
pen d itures were consistent from fisca l 2017 - 2018 to 2016 - 2017. The i ncrease i n  expend i­
tu res i n  fisca l 2018 - 2019 is primari ly d ue to ma intenance projects that were not ca pita l ized. 
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AR EA 
MANAG EM ENT'S DISCUSSION AN D ANALYSIS 

THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Another way to assess the financ ia l  health of the Col lege is to look at the statements of cash flows. 
The pu rpose of the statements of cash flows is to provide relevant i nformation a bout cash recei pts and 
cash payments made by the Col lege d u ri ng a fisca l yea r. The statement a lso he lps users to assess the 
Col lege's: 

• Abi l ity to generate futu re net cash flows 
• Abi l ity to meet its obl igations as they come d ue 
• Need for externa l  financ ing 
• Com ments a bout cash flows a re as fo l lows: 
• Cash used by operating activities consists of: 

o major revenue sou rces of tu ition a nd fees, a uxi l i a ry enterprises income, a nd sa les of 
educationa l  services 

o major expend itures of personnel services, operating expenses, a nd scholarsh i p  a l­
lowances 

• The th ree major components of cash provided by nonca pita l fi nancing activities a re: 
o state a id 
o property taxes for the Genera l  Fund 
o nonexcha nge grants 

• Cash used for capita l a nd related fi na nci ng activities decreased in 6-30-17 pr ima ri ly due 
to less construction costs associated with The Ca reer Academy. 

• Cash used for i nvesting activities i ncreased d ue to a n  i nvestment matu ri ng and h eld as a 
cash equ iva lent. 

Cash provided by (used i n) :  
Operati ng activities 
Noncapita l financ ing activities 

TABLE 3 

CASH FLOWS 
( i n  thousands of dol la rs) 

Capita l  and related financing activities 
I nvesting activities 

Net i ncrease i n  cash and cash 
equ iva lents 

Cash and cash eq u iva lents, beginn i ng of year 

Cash and cash eq u iva lents, end of year  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2019 

(68,902) 
81,567 

27 
942 

13,634 
109,627 

123,261 

2018 2017 

(73,3 2 1) (72 ,183) 
82 , 193 7 6,322 
59,693 (368) 

476 10,381 

69,041 14, 152 
40,586 26,434 

109,627 40,586 

The notes to the fina ncial  statements provide add itional  i nformation that is essentia l  to a fu l l  
u ndersta nd i ng of the data provided i n  a l l  the basic fina ncia l statements. 
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N llY COLLEG E AREA 
MANAG EM ENT'S DISCUSSION AN D ANALYSIS 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At J u ne 30, 2019,  2018, a n d  2017 ,  the College had $ 101, 162 thousands, $75 ,365 tho usands, and 
$70,812 thousands i nvested in  capita l assets, net of accu m u lated depreciation,  respectively. De­
prec iation  cha rges for the fisca l years ended June 30, 2019, 2018, and 2017 were $5 ,  733, $5,455, 
and $5,42 7  thousa nds, respectively. Detai ls of capita l assets for the fisca l yea rs ended June 30 a re 
as fo l lows: 

Land 
Land improvements 
Bu i ld ings 
Equ ipment 

Debt 

TABLE 4 
CAPITAL ASSETS 

(net of depreciation , i n  thousands of dol la rs) 

2019 

28, 173 
1,478 

64,047 
7 ,464 

101, 162 

2018 2017 

1,889 2,363 
1,59 1  1, 704 

63,994 59,602 
7 ,89 1 7 , 143 

75,365 70,812 

Southeast Com mun ity Col lege Tax-Su pported Certificates of Participation ("COPS") , Series 2018, were 
issued June  7 ,  2018, to fi nance a portion of the cost of constructing, acq u i ri ng, a nd eq u i pping certa in  
bu i ld ings and re lated improvement to the Col lege's ca m puses i n  the a mount of $58,37 5,000. Pay­
ments a re made semiannua l ly on June 15th a nd Decem ber 15th and i nc lude princ ipa l  and  i nterest 
ra ngi ng from 3% to 5% over the l ife of the COPS.  The COPS were issued at a pre m i u m  of $2 , 195,062 
which is a mortized over the l ife of the COPS. 

Southeast Com mun ity Col lege Fac i l ities Revenue Bonds, Series 2018 were issued September 19, 
2018, to finance a portion of the cost of constructing, acq u i ri ng, a nd eq u i pp ing a nd fu rn ishing new 
student housing and d i n i ng fac i l ities at the Col lege's Beatrice Ca mpus a nd new student housing faci l­
ities at the Col lege's M i lford Cam pus. Payments a re made sem ia n n ua l ly on June  15th a nd Decem­
ber 15th and  inc lude pr incipa l  and interest ranging from 3% to 5% over the l ife of the revenue bonds. 

The Col lege had no outsta nd ing long term debt at June 30, 2017.  

2018 Certificates of Pa rtic ipation 
2018 Revenue Bonds 

TABLE 5 

OUTSTANDING DEBT 
( i n  thousands of dol lars) 

9 

2019 

58,375 
19,500 

77 ,875 

2018 

58,375 

58,375 

2017 



BUDGET VS ACTUAL 

SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
MANAG EMENT'S DISCUSSION AN D ANALYSIS 

Pr ior  to August 1 the, Col lege's ad m i n istration prepa res a proposed operating budget for the Genera l ,  
Restricted, and Pla nt Funds. At the Southeast Commun ity Col lege pub l ic meeti ng in  September, a 
publ ic  hea ring was conducted to obta in  taxpayer com ments rega rd i ng the proposed budget. After 
the publ ic  hea rings, the budget is lega l ly adopted by the Board of Governors th rough a passage of a 
resol ution .  

TABLE 6 

SOUTHEAST COMMUNITY COLLEGE AREA I BUDGET VS ACTUAL, GENERAL FUND ONLY 
( in  thousands of do l lars) 

Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual 

2019 2019 2018 2018 2017 2017 
REVENUES 

State aid 27,372,774 27,372,774 27,964,045 27,460,870 28,114,535 27,095,637 
Property taxes 41,585,413 40,662,058 40,648,322 41,259,669 34,914,825 35,966,336 
Tuition 20,213,634 19,414,750 20,221,952 19,467,175 22,785,674 19,331,951 
Other 682,753 553,588 400,000 1,035,285 571,220 1,277,036 
(Add) to/use cash reserves (2,048,778) (4,415,641) (2,321,605) 

Total revenues 89,854,574 85,954,392 89,234,319 84,807,358 86,386,254 81,349,355 

EXPENSES 

Personnel services 74,009,487 67,121,914 72,340,559 65,622,819 69,406,073 64,858,339 
Operating 13,395,760 14,767,188 13,092,062 14,805,605 12,315,722 12,887,530 
Travel 401,152 255,402 360,416 222,154 677,320 383,628 
Equipment 2,048,175 3,809,888 3,441,282 4,156,780 3,987,139 3,219,858 

Total expenses 89,854,574 85,954,392 89,234,319 84,807,358 86,386,254 81,349,355 

Figure 4. 

Southeast Community College Area I Difference between Actual and Budgeted Revenue for General Fund 
(in thousands of dollars) 

2019 2018 2017 

State aid I $OK ($503K) I ($1,019K) I 
Property taxes ($923K) I 1 $611K 1$1,052K 

Tuition ($799K) I ($7551<) • ($3,454K) . 
Other ($129K) I I $635K • $706K 

(Add)/to/use cash ($2,049K) • l ($4,416K) .. ($2,322K) • reserves 
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Figure 5. 

SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
MANAG EMENT'S DISCUSSION AN D ANALYSIS 

Southeast Community College Area I Difference between Budgeted and Actual Expenses for General Fund 
(in thousands of dollars) 

2019 2018 2017 

Personal services -$6,888K -$6,718K· .$4.548K 

Operating 1($1,371K) 1($1,714K) ($572K) I 

Travel I $146K I $138K I $294K 

Equipment 1($1,7621<) ($7151<) I I $767K 

Comments rega rd ing budget vs actua l reven ues and expenditures for the genera l  fund budget are as 
fol lows: 

Fisca l 2018 - 2019 
• Tuition revenue was below budget by $ 799 thousa nds due to a s l ight decrease i n  enro l lment 

that was partia l ly offset aga inst a n  increase i n  tu ition rates. 
• Personnel  services expend itu res were below budget by $6,888 d ue to a h igh n u m ber of re­

tirements and positions rema i n ing vacant for a n  extended period of time. 
• Eq u ipment was above budget due to a large n u m ber of mai ntenance projects being com­

pleted in the fisca l year. 

Fisca l 2017 - 2018 
• State a id  reven ue was below budget by $503 thousa nds d ue to state a ppropriations bei ng 

red uced d u ring the year due to a weak Nebraska economy. 
• Tu ition revenue was below budget by $ 755 thousands due to a sl ight decrease i n  enrol lment 

that was pa rtia l ly offset aga inst an i ncrease i n  tu ition rates. 
• Personnel  services expenditures were below budget by $6,  718 d ue to a h igh n u m ber of re­

tirements a nd positions rema in ing vacant for a n  extended period of time. 
• Operating expend itures were a bove budget d ue to a la rge n u m ber of ma intena nce projects 

being com pleted in  the fiscal year. 

Fisca l 2016 - 2017 and 2015 - 2016 
• State a id revenue was below budget by $ 1, 109 thousands d ue to state a ppropriations being 

red uced d u ri ng the yea r due to a weak Nebraska economy i n  fisca l 2016 - 2017 . 
• Tu ition reven ue was below budget by $3,454 a nd $4,836 thousands in  fisca l 2016 - 2017 

and 2015 - 2016 due to a decrease i n  enro l l ment that was partia l ly offset aga inst an i n­
crease in tuition rates. 

• Personne l  services expend itures were below budget by $4,54 7 and $6,253 i n  fisca l 2016 -
2017 and 2015 - 2016 due to a h igh n u m ber of retirements a nd positions remai n ing vacant 
for an extended period of time. 

• Operating expenditures were a bove budget by $572 (thousands) and $438 (thousands) i n  
fisca l 2016 - 2017 a n d  2015 - 2016 d ue to a la rge n u m ber of ma intenance projects being 
com pleted i n  each fisca l yea r. 
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N l1Y COLLEG E AREA 
MANAG E M ENT'S DISCUSSION AN D ANALYSIS 

ECONOMIC FACTORS THAT WILL AFFECT THE FUTURE 

The economic position of Southeast Commun ity Col lege is closely tied to that of the State. LB 946 
specifies the state a id  d istribution to the commun ity col leges. A weak farm economy may continue  
to hamper the  State's growth over the  next severa l years thus effecting state a id  a ppro priated to the 
comm u n ity co l leges. 

The state a id  appropriation for fisca l 2018 - 2019 to the Col lege is 27  .9% of the tota l com m u n ity col­
lege a ppropriation .  

The Col lege Board of Governors has recently taken the fo l lowi ng actions: 
• I ncreased the Genera l  Fund property tax levy to 7 .37 cents per $ 100 va luation a nd ma in­

ta ined the CIF property tax levy at 2 .00 cents. 
• Resident tu ition and fee rates were increased by 3.6% for the fisca l yea r  begi n n i ng J u ly 1, 

2019. 
Other Items 

• Property va luations for 2019 i ncreased 2 .8% over the previous yea r. 

FINANCIAL CONTACT 

The Col lege's financia l statements are designed to present users with a genera l  overview of the Col­
lege's finances a nd to demonstrate the Col lege's accou ntab i l ity. If you have q uestions a bout the report 
or need additiona l fi na ncia l information,  contact the Col lege's Vice-President for Ad m i n istrative Serv­
ices, Amy L. Jergens, 301 South 68th Street Place, Lincol n ,  Nebraska 68510-2449, 402.323.3414, 
ajorgens@southeast.ed u .  
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
STATEM ENTS OF N ET POSITION 

J U N E  30, 2019 AN D 2018 

2019 2018 

Col lege Fou ndation Col lege Fou ndation 
ASSETS 

Cu rrent Assets 
Cash and cash eq u iva lents 123 ,261, 104 55,517 109,627,324 34,979 
Short-term i nvestments 1,548,223 1, 118,081 1,494,811 1,118,979 
Property taxes receivable 18,433,344 18, 593,050 
Accounts receivable (net) 2 ,234, 136 10,627 2 , 797 ,795 2 7 ,340 
I nterest receiva ble 74, 114 68,073 69,613 61,446 
I nventories 1,762 ,607 1,732, 189 
Prepa id expense 2,052,740 1,832,609 

Total cu rrent assets 149,366,268 1,252 ,298 136 ,147,39 1  1,242 ,744 

Noncu rrent Assets 
Deposits with vendors 42,097 42,09 7  
Pledges receiva ble 
Endowment investments - 25,956,094 - 23,036,644 
Long-term i nvestments 682 ,134 7 15,43 6  
Prepaid expenses 150,680 162 ,270 
Capita l assets, net 101, 162,456 7 19,529 75,364,595 7 19,529 

Total noncu rrent assets 102 ,037,367 26,675,623 76,284,398 23,756,173 

TOTAL ASSETS 251,403,635 2 7 ,927,921 212 ,431,789 24,998,917 

LIABI LIT IES 
Cu rrent Lia bi l ities 

Accounts payab le 10,581, 152 7 1,277 3,709,152 33,609 
Accrued sa la ries 376,130 796,662 
Deferred revenue 1,318,638 16,668 1,22 7 ,750 16,668 
Deposits 148,485 179,12 6  
Accrued interest 310,619 154, 110 
Current portion of long-term 

debt 479,676 13,331 78,984 13,331 

Tota l current l i ab i l ities 13,214,700 101,276 6, 145,784 63,608 

Noncu rrent Lia bi l ities 
Accrued compensated 

a bsences 2 ,611,282 2,335,461 
Long-term debt, net 79,516,308 42,664 60,486,200 55,995 

Tota l noncurrent 
l iab i l ities 82, 127 ,590 42,664 62,�2 1,661 55,995 

TOTAL LIAB I LITI ES 95,342 ,290 143,940 68,967,445 119,603 
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N ET POS ITION 

SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AR EA 
STATEM ENTS OF N ET POSITION 

J U N E  30, 2019 AN D 2018 

2019 

Col lege Foundation 

I nvested in  capita l assets, net of 

2018 

Col lege Foundatio n  

related debt 7 4,878,523 7 19,529 75,364,595 719,529 
Restricted for: 

Nonexpenda ble 
Scholarsh ips and 

fel lowsh ips 
Expenda ble 

Scholarsh ips a nd 
fe l lowsh ips 

ADA/ Hazardous Waste 
Ca pita l projects 

Un  restricted 

TOTAL N ET POSITION 

8,390,424 

- 17, 110 ,131 

22,642,409 
58,540,413 1,563,897 

156,061,345 27 , 783,981 

See accom pa nyi ng notes to fi nancia l statements. 
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8,237 ,622 

- 14,591,  781 
24,875 

14,609,341 
53,465,533 1,330,382 

143,464,344 24,879,314 



SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEGE AREA 
STATEM ENTS OF REVEN U ES, EXPENSES, AN D CHANGES IN  N ET POSITION 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AN D 2018 

2019 2018 

Col lege Foundation Col lege Foundation 
OPERATI NG REVEN U ES 

Student tuition and fees 16,029,253 15,080,943 
Nongovernmenta l grants and 

contracts 199, 7 16 28,305 
Sa les and services of ed ucational 

departments 1,052,918 1,051,649 
Auxi l iary enterprises 7 ,650,269 8,333,724 
Other operating income 1,834,519 176,508 2 ,250,678 179, 173 

Tota l operati ng revenues 26,766,675 176,508 26,745,299 179, 173 

OPERATI NG EXPENSES 
Personnel services 7 1,860,395 128,463 70,844,474 138, 112 
Operati ng expenses 26,053,37 1 4,242,537 27 ,866, 120 2 ,136,913 
Travel 385,681 417 ,504 
Ca pita l assets not capita l ized 5,021,658 2,578, 131 
Depreciation 5 ,732,833 5,455 ,451 

Tota l operati ng expenses 109,053,938 4,37 1,000 107 , 161,680 2,275,025 

OPERATING LOSS (82,287 ,263) (4, 194,492) (80,416,381) (2,095,852) 

NONOPERATI NG R EVEN U ES 
Governmenta l appropriations 

State a id 27 ,372, 774 27 ,460,870 
Property taxes 40,662,058 41,259,649 

Govern mental grants a nd contracts 
Federa l 12,644,086 12,952,454 
State 1,037,243 912 ,463 

Nongovernmenta l  grants and 
contracts 59,800 

G ifts 4, 779,513 1,990,657 
I nvestment income 2,302,436 2 ,319,646 528,624 1,833,222 
I nterest on indebted ness (2,  7 73,816) (149,232) 

Net nonoperating reven ues 81,304,581 7 ,099, 159 82 ,964,828 3,823,879 

I NCOM E (LOSS) BEFORE OTH ER 
REVEN U ES, EXPENSES, GAI NS, 
OR LOSSES (982 ,682) 2 ,904,667 2,548,447 1,728,027 
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
STATEMENTS OF R EVEN U ES,  EXPENSES, AN D CHANGES I N  N ET POSIT IO N  

YEARS EN DED JUNE 30, 2019 AN D 2018 

2019 2018 

Col lege Foundation Col lege Fou ndation 
OTH ER R EVENU ES, EXPENSES, GAI NS, 

OR LOSSES 
Capita l appropriations 11,468,947 11,655,353 
Ca pita l gra nt and gifts 2,016,000 
Gain on d isposa l of capita l  assets 94,736 45,426 101,757 

Tota l other revenues, 
expenses, ga ins, or losses 13,579,683 11, 700 ,779 101, 757 

I NCREASE I N  NET POSIT ION 12,597 ,001 2,904,667 14,249,226 1,829,784 

N ET POSIT ION,  beginn ing of yea r 143,464,344 24,879,314 129,215, 118 23,049,530 

N ET POSIT ION,  end of year 156,061,345 27 ,783,981 143,464,344 24,879,314 

See accompanyi ng notes to fi nancial  statements. 
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SOUTHEAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
STATEM ENTS OF CASH FLOWS - D IRECT M ETHOD 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AN D 2018 

2019 2018 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATI NG ACTIVITI ES 

Tuition a n d  fees 
Gra nts and  contracts 
Payments for personnel services 
Payments for operating expenses 
Payments for scholarsh i p  a l lowa nces 
Sa les and services of educationa l departments 
Auxi l ia ry enterprises charges 
Other recei pts 

Net cash used i n  operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAP ITAL FI NANCI NG 
ACTIVITI ES 
State a id a ppropriations 
Property taxes - Genera l  Fund and ADA/ Haza rdous 

Waste 
G ifts and grants for other tha n  ca pita l pu rposes 
Student loa ns receipts 
Student loa ns d isbu rsements 

Net cash provided by nonca pita l fi na ncing 
activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL F I NANCI NG 
ACTIVITI ES 
Proceeds from long-term debt, net of premium 
I nterest i ncome on bond proceeds 
I nterest pa id on capita l debt 
Property taxes - Capita l  I m provement Fund 
Ca pita l  grants and gifts 
Proceeds from sale of ca pita l assets 
Purchases of capita l assets 

Net cash provided by capita l 
fi nancing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM I NVESTI NG ACTIVITI ES 
Proceeds from sales and  maturities of i nvestments 
I nterest on i nvestments 
Purchase of investments 

Net cash provided by investing activities 
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22,620,435 
188,262 

(7 1,980,938) 
(29,454,892) 

(5,256,803) 
1,033,251 
7 ,379,977 
6,568,9 16 

(68,901, 792) 

27 ,372 ,774 

40,82 1,764 
13,372,026 
14,230,287 

(14,230,287) 

81,566,564 

19,430,800 
1,335,420 

(2 ,617 ,307) 
11,468,947 

2,016,000 
94,736 

(31,701,993) 

26,603 

(20, 110) 
962,515 

942,405 

23, 199,178 
28,305 

( 70,539,219) 
(29,656, 186) 

(9,560,254) 
1,051,649 
9 ,904,869 
2 ,250,678 

( 73 ,320,980) 

27 ,460,870 

39,881,343 
14,85 1,199 
1 7 ,614,554 

( 17 ,614,554) 

8 2 , 193,412 

60,570,062 

9 ,636,967 

45,426 
( 10,559,369) 

59,693,086 

917,777 
374,514 

(816,224) 

476,067 



SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
STATEM ENTS OF CASH FLOWS - D IRECT M ETHO D  

YEARS ENDED J U N E  3 0 ,  2019 AN D 2018 

N ET I NCREASE I N  CASH AN D CASH EQU IVALENTS 

CASH AN D CASH EQU IVALENTS, begi n n ing of year  

CASH AN D CASH EQU IVALENTS, end of year 

Reconci l iation of Net Operating Loss to Net 
Net Cash Used i n  Operati ng Activities 

Net operati ng loss 

Adjustments to reconci le net operating loss to net 
cash used in operati ng activities: 
Depreciation expenses 
Cha nges in assets and l iab i l ities: 

Accou nts receivable (net) 
I nventories 
Prepaid expense 
Accounts payable 
Accrued sa laries 
I nterest payable 
Deferred revenue 
Deposits 

Net cash used in operating activities 

NONCASH TRANSACTIONS 
Eq u i pment 
Capita l  lease 

See accompa nying notes to fi nancia l statements. 
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2019 2018 

13,633, 780 69,041,585 

109,627 ,324 40,585, 739 

123,261, 104 109,627 ,324 

(82 ,287,263) (80,416,381) 

5 ,732,833 5 ,455,451 

563,659 (950,930) 
(30,418) 413,922 

77 ,529 
6,872,000 1,845,911 

305,256 
156,509 

90,888 
(51,738) 

(68,901, 792) (73,320,980) 



SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUM MARY OF SIG N I FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES 

Southeast Com m u n ity Co l lege Area was estab l ished Ju ly 1, 1973,  by legislative action .  
The Area encompasses the 15 counties of southeast Nebraska . An 11-mem ber Boa rd of 
Governors is the Col lege's govern i ng body and establ ishes the pol icies by wh ich the Col­
lege is governed . 

Reporting Entity 

The concept underlying the defin ition of the financia l  reporting entity is that e lected offic ia ls 
are accou nta ble to the i r  constituents for the i r  actions. As requ i red by acco u nti ng princ iples 
genera l ly accepted in the U n ited States of America , the fi nanc ia l  reporting entity inc ludes 
both the primary government and a l l  of its component u n its as defined by Governmenta l  Ac­
counti ng Standards Boa rd (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity. An or­
ganization other tha n  a pr imary government serves as a n ucleus for a reporting entity when 
it issues sepa rate financia l  statements. Southeast Com mun ity Col lege Area is not a com­
ponent u n it of another pri mary govern ment reporting entity. 

The Southeast Com m u n ity Col lege Education Fou ndation (Foundation) is a lega l ly separate, 
tax-exempt component u n it of Southeast Com m u n ity Col lege Area . The Fou ndation acts 
prima ri ly as a fu ndra is ing organ ization to provide support to the Col lege.  The Fou ndation 
is governed by a 10-mem ber Board .  No members of the Board a re mem bers of the Col lege 
or the Col lege Board .  Although the Col lege does not contro l the tim i ng or a mounts of re­
cei pts from the Fou ndation ,  the majority of the resou rces, or i n come thereon , wh ich the 
Foundation holds a nd i nvests, is restricted to the activities of the Col lege by the donors. 
Beca use these restricted resources held by the Fou ndation can on ly be used by, or for the 
benefit of, the Col lege, the Foundation is considered a component u n it of the Col lege and 
is d iscrete ly presented i n  the Col lege's financia l statements. 

Complete financ ia l  statements for the Foundation can be obta i ned from the Adm i n istra­
tive Office at 301 South 68th Street Place, Linco ln ,  Nebraska,  68510. 

Measu rement Focus a nd Basis of Accou nti ng 

The financia l statements a re reported us i ng the economic resources measurement focus 
a n d  the accrua l basis of accounting. Reven ues a re recorded when ea rned a nd expenses 
a re recorded when a l iab i l ity is i ncurred , regard less of the tim ing of related cash flows. Al l  
sign if icant i ntrafund tra nsactions have been e l im i nated.  Grants and s im i la r  items are rec­
ogn ized as revenue as soon as a l l  e l igib i l ity req u i rements imposed by the provider have 
been met. 

In accordance with GASB Statement No.  20,  Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pro­
prietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, 

the Col lege does not apply F inancia l Accounting Standards Boa rd (FASB) pronouncements 
issued after November 30, 1989, for proprietary activities, u n less the GASB a mends its 
pronouncements to specifica l ly adopt FASB pronouncements issued after that date. 
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 1. ORGAN IZATION AN D SU M MARY OF S IG N I FICANT ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Co ntinued) 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accou nting (Contin ued) 

The Fou ndation is a private nonprofit organization that reports u nder FASS standards, i n­
c lud ing FASS ASC 958-205, Financial Reporting for Not-for-Profit Organizations. As such,  
certa i n  revenue recogn ition criteria and presentation features a re d ifferent from GASS rev­
enue recogn ition criteria and presentation features. No mod ifications have been made to 
the Foundation's fi na ncia l i nformation in the Col lege's financia l reporti ng e ntity for these 
d ifferences. 

Basis of Presentation 

Pursuant to the provisions of GASS Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and 

Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments, as amended 
by GASS Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion 
and Analysis for Public Colleges and Universities an Amendment of GASB Standard No. 

34, the fu l l  scope of the Col lege's activities is considered to be a single bus i ness-type ac­
tivity (BTA) and ,  accord ingly, is reported with in  a single col u m n  i n  the basic fi nancia l 
statements. 

Effective for the year ending June 30, 2016, the Col lege adopted GASS Statement 72, 

Fair Value Measurement and Application. The objective of th is Statement is to enhance 
com para bi l ity of govern menta l financia l  statements by req u i ri ng certa i n  fa i r  va lue meas­
urements on a government's fina ncia l  position.  The adoption of this statem ent d id  not 
have a n  i mpact on financia l position or note d isclosures. 

Effective for the yea r end ing June 30, 2016, the Col lege adopted GASS Statement 76, The 

Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments. 
The objective of th is Statement is to identify the h ierarchy of genera l ly accepted accou nti ng 
princi ples (GMP) to wh ich a government shou ld  look to for gu idance. GASS 76 red uced 
the GMP hiera rchy to two categories of authoritative GMP: GASS Statements of Govern­
menta l  Accounti ng Standards and GASS Techn ica l Bu l letins and I mplementation Gu ides as 
wel l  as gu ida nce from the America n I nstitute of Certified Pub l ic Accountants that is cleared 
by GASS.  The adoption of this statement d id not have an im pact on financ ia l  position or 
note d isclosures. 

Budgets 

Budgets a re prepared on the same basis of accounting except that ca pita l  assets acq u i red 
are recorded as expenses and depreciation is n ot recorded.  

Cash and Cash Equ iva lents 

Cash equ iva lents i nc lude h igh ly l i qu id  tempora ry i nvestments with origi na l  maturities of 
th ree months or less, read i ly converti ble to known a mou nts of cash. 
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 1. ORGAN IZATION AN D SUM MARY OF S IGN I FICANT ACCOUNTI NG POLIC IES (Co ntinued) 

I nvestments 

Investments a re reported at fa i r  va lue .  

Receivables 

Receivab les consist of tu ition and  fees cha rges to students and charges for a uxi l ia ry en­
terprises' sa les a nd services. Receivables a lso i nc lude a mou nts d ue from the federa l 
govern ment, state a nd loca l  governments, and private sou rces i n  connection with rei m­
bursement of a l lowable expend itures made pursuant to contracts and  gra nts ,  and pledges 
that a re verifiable, measurable,  a nd expected to be col lected a nd ava i lab le for expend i­
tu res for which the resou rce provider's cond itions have been satisfied . Receiva bles a re 
recorded net of esti mated u ncol lectib le a mounts, which is based on h istorica l  co l lection 
experience and a review of the accou nts receiva ble l isti ng. 

I nventories 

Inventories are va lued at the lower-of-cost or net real izable va lue as determ i ned by the 
fi rst-i n ,  fi rst-out (F I FO) method with the exception of pa rts i nventories, wh ich a re stated at 
replacement va lue .  

Capita l Assets 

Ca pita l assets are stated at cost at date of acqu isition or fa i r  va l ue at date of donation 
in  the case of gifts. The Col lege ca pita l izes assets that have a va lue or cost i n  excess of 
$5,000 at the date of acqu isition and an expected usefu l l ife of one or more yea rs. L ibrary 
books are expensed . 

Depreciation is com puted usi ng the stra ight-l ine method over the estimated usefu l l ives 
of the assets. The fol lowing esti mated useful l ives a re used to compute depreciation: 

Bu i ld ings 
Bu i ld ing i m provements 
Bu i ld ing content replacements 
Office furn itu re 
Instructiona l equ i pment 
Office equ i pment 
Vehic les 

Restricted Assets 

40 years 
20 years 
10 years 
10 years 

7 yea rs 
3 years 
3 yea rs 

Restricted assets represent assets whose use is restricted by externa l  parties or by law 
th rough constitutional  provisions or enab l ing legislation .  
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AR EA 
NOTES TO F I NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 1. ORGAN IZATION AND SUM MARY OF S IG N I FICANT ACCO U NTING POLICI ES (Co nti nued) 

Compensated Absences 

Vacation and personal  leave meet the criteria in GASB Statement No.  16 a nd are i nc luded 
in accrued compensated a bsences. The criteria for accru ing compensated a bsences a re 
met when employee's rights to receive com pensation a re attri buta ble to services a l ready 
rendered a nd it is probable that the employer w i l l  com pensate the employee through pa id 
ti me off or some other means, such as cash at term ination or ret irement. 

Noncu rrent Lia b i l ities 

Noncu rrent l iab i l ities i nc lude bonds paya ble. 

Net Position 

The Col lege's net position is  classified as fo l lows: 

I nvested i n  Capita l Assets, Net of Related Debt 
Th is represents the Col lege's tota l i nvestment i n  capita l  assets, n et of outstand i ng 
debt obl igations related to those capita l assets. 

Restricted Net Position - Nonexpendable 
Nonexpendable restricted net position includes endowments and sim i lar  type assets 
whose use is l i m ited by donors or other outside sources and, as a cond ition of the 
gift, the pr inc ipa l  is to be ma inta ined in perpetu ity. 

Restricted Net Position - Expendable 
Expendable restricted net position inc ludes resou rces i n  which the Col lege is lega l ly 
or contractua l ly obl igated to spend the resources i n  accordance with restrictions 
im posed by externa l pa rties. 

U n restricted Net Position 
Unrestricted net position inc ludes resources derived from student tu ition and fees, 
state a id, property taxes, sa les and services, u nrestricted gifts, and  i nterest i ncome. 

Restricted and u n restricted resources are tracked using a fu nd accounti ng system and are 
spent i n  accordance with establ ished fund a uthorities. Fund authorities provide ru les for 
the fund activity and  are separately estab l ished for restricted and unrestricted activities. 
When both restricted and u nrestricted fu nds a re ava i lab le for expend iture, the decision for 
fund ing is transactional  based with i n  the departmenta l  management system i n  p lace at the 
Col lege. 
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N l1Y COLLEG E AREA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 1. ORGAN IZATION AN D SUM MARY OF SIG N I FICANT ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Co ntin u ed) 

Scholarsh ip Al lowances 

Student tu ition and fees revenues and certa i n  other revenues from Col lege cha rges a re 
reported net of scholarsh ip  a l lowances i n  the accompanying statement of revenues, ex­
penses, and  changes i n  net position .  The scholarsh ip  a l lowan ce is the d ifference between 
the actua l  charge for goods and services provided by the Col lege and the a m ount that is 
pa id by students or by th i rd parties on the students' beha lf. Student fina nc ia l assistance 
grants, such as Pel l  grants, and other federa l ,  state, or nongovernmenta l p rogra ms, a re 
recorded as e ither operating or nonoperating revenues i n  the accompa nying statement of 
revenues, expenses, a nd changes i n  net position . To the extent that reven u es from these 
programs are used to satisfy tu ition , fees, and other charges, the Col lege h as recorded 
them as scholarsh ip  a l lowa nces. 

Revenue a nd Expense Recogn ition 

The Col lege presents itsrevenues and expenses as operati ng or nonoperati ng based on 
recogn ition defi n itions from GASB Statement No. 9,  Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary 
and Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund 

Accounting. Operati ng activities a re those activities that are necessa ry and  essentia l  to 
the m ission of the Col lege. Operating revenues inc lude a l l  charges to custo mers, grants 
received for student financia l  assistance, a nd interest ea rned on loans. G ra nts received 
for student financia l  assistance are considered operating revenues because they provide 
resou rces for student charges and such progra ms a re necessary and essentia l  to the 
m ission of the Col lege.  Revenues from nonexchange transactions a nd state appropria­
tions that represent subsid ies or gifts to the Col lege, as wel l  as i nvestment i ncome, a re 
considered nonoperating since these are either i nvesting, capita l ,  or nonca p ita l fi nanc ing 
activities . Operati ng expenses a re a l l  expense tra nsactions i ncu rred other than those re­
lated to i nvesting, capita l ,  or nonca pita l f inancing activities. Revenues recei ved for capi­
ta l fi na nci ng activities, as wel l  as related expenses, a re considered neither operating nor 
nonoperati ng activities and a re presented after nonoperating activities on the accom pa­
nying statement of reven ues, expenses, and changes in net position .  

Encum brance Accounting 

The Col lege uses an encum bra nce system for tracking outstand ing purchase orders a nd 
other com m itments for materia ls or services not received d u ring the fiscal  year. Encu m­
brances do not constitute expenses or l iab i l ities a nd are not reflected in these financia l 
statements. 

Restricted/U nrestricted Resou rce Priority 

If both restricted and u nrestricted resources a re ava i la ble to fi na nce a program,  restricted 
resou rces a re used first un less the restricted resources req u i re u n restricted resources to 
be used fi rst. 
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N llY COLLEG E AREA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 1.  ORGANIZATION AN D SUM MARY OF SIG N I FICANT ACCOU NTING POLICI ES (Conti n u ed) 

Use of Esti mates 

The prepa ration of financia l statements i n  accordance with accou nting princ i ples genera l ly 
accepted i n  the U n ited States of America requ i res ma nagement to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amou nts of assets a nd l i ab i l ities and d isclosure of 
conti ngent assets a nd l iab i l ities at the date of the financia l  statements and the reported 
amou nts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period . Actua l  resu lts could d iffer 
from those estimates. 

NOTE 2 .  CASH AN D I NVESTMENTS 

The Col lege can i nvest, after proper consideration of the requ i rements for the ava i labi l ity 
of money, funds of the Col lege i n  securities the nature of wh ich i n d iv iduals of prud ence, 
d iscretion,  and i ntel l igence acq u i re or reta i n  in  dea l i ng with the property of a nother. 

I nterest Rate R isk 

The Col lege does not have a formal investment pol icy that l im its investment matu rities as 
a mea ns of ma nagi ng its exposu re to fa i r  va lue losses aris ing from i ncreasing  interest 
risk rates. 

Cred it R isk 

I n  accordance with the Col lege's i nvestment pol icy, funds may be i nvested , w ith i n  certa i n  
l im its, in  FDIC-insu red ban ks, U .S .  Treasury a n d  federa l  agencies,  and certificates of de­
posit issued by FDIC-i nsured banks.  

Custod ia l  Cred it Risk - Deposits 

Custod ia l  cred it risk for deposits of the Col lege is the risk that the Col lege's deposits 
wou ld  not be covered by depository insura nce. The Col lege req u i res that deposits in ex­
cess of a ny insu rance l i m it must be col latera l ized by the financia l i nstitution with a ppro­
priate pledged securities to protect fu nds a bove the i nsurable leve l .  

Cash deposits, primari ly i nterest-bea ring, a re covered by federa l  depository i nsura nce or 
pledged col latera l of u n registered U .S. govern ment secu rities held by va riou.s deposito­
ries. Pledged investments at J u ne 30, 2019 and 2018, were in u n registered U .S .  gov­
ern ment secu rities and federa l  agency obl igations held i n  the Col lege's name by the 
custod ia l  ban ks.  

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the ba lance of the Col lege's deposits, wh ich inc ludes checking, 
money market, a nd certificates of deposit, were insured or fu l ly col latera l ized . 
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM E NTS 

NOTE 2 .  CASH AN D I NVESTM ENTS (Contin ued) 

NOTE 3 .  

Custod ia l  Cred it Risk - I nvestments 

For an  i nvestment, custod ia l  cred it risk is the risk that, i n  the event of a fa i l u re of the 
cou nter party, the Col lege wi l l  not be ab le to recover the va lue of its i nvestm ents or col­
latera l secu rities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Col lege has no cus­
tod ia l  cred it risk i n  its i nvestment portfol io.  

Concentration of Cred it Risk 

The Col lege had no i nvestment i n  a ny one issuer greater than  five percent of its overa l l  
i nvestments. 

I nvestments at J u ne 30, 2019 and 2018, are summarized as fol lows: 

2 0 19 2 0 18 
Fa i r  Fa i r  

I nvestme nt Type Va lue Va l ue 

POAA n ote receiva b le 163,000 163 ,000 
Certifi cates of d eposit 2 ,0 67,357 2 ,047,247 

2 , 230,357 2 , 2 10 ,247 

PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE 

Property taxes levied for the fisca l year end ing J u ne 30, 2019, were d ue December 31, 
2018, a nd became del i nq uent i n  Apr i l  to September of 2019. Property tax revenues 
based on  the assessed val uation a nd the levy set a re recogn ized i n  the current fisca l 
year  even though pa rt of the property tax reven ue is not del inquent or col lected u nti l the 
fo l lowing fisca l yea r. 

Property taxes a re recogn ized net of the ·cou nty col lection fee of 1%. The assessed val ua­
tion a nd levies i n  cents per $ 100 of assessed va luation for the fisca l yea rs ended June 30, 
2019 a nd 2018, were as fo l lows: 

Assessed va luation 
September 2018 a nd 2017 

Levy i n  cents per $ 100 of assessed 
va luation 
Genera l  Fund 
Ca pita l I m provement Fund 
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2019 

59,413,673, 703 

7.07 
2 .00 

9.07 

2018 

58,079,907,413 

7.07 
2 .00 

9.07 



SOUTH EAST COM M U NITY COLLEG E AREA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 3 .  PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE (Continued) 

NOTE 4. 

NOTE 5 .  

The a mou nts of property taxes receiva ble a t  J une 3 0  were a s  fol lows: 

Genera l  Fu nd 
Ca pita l I mprovement Fund 

Tota l 

2019 2018 

14,368,217 
4,065 , 127 

18,433,344 

14,463,363 
4, 129,687 

18,593,050 

The fol lowing amounts, which are i nc luded in the property taxes receivab le  amounts, 
were held as cash by cou nty treasu rers at J u ne 30:  

2019 2018 

Genera l  Fund 526,010 515 ,299 
Capita l I m provement Fund 148,673 145,642 

Total 674,683 660,941 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Accounts receivable at J u ne 30 were as fo l lows: 

2019 2018 

Federa l nonexchange gra nts 1,433,850 1,518,624 
Tu ition and fees 7 ,324,411 6 ,904,561 
Other 169,988 653,549 

8,928,249 9,076,734 
Al lowance for u ncol lecti ble accounts (6,694, 113) (6,278,939) 

Tota l accou nts receivable,  net 2 ,234, 136 2 ,797 ,795 

I NVENTO R I ES 

I nventories at J u ne 30 were as fo l lows: 

2019 2018 

Books and suppl ies 1,574,854 1,542,752 
Parts 105, 650 130,267 
Livestock and gra i n  82, 103 59, 170 

1,762,607 1,732 ,189 
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SOUTH EAST COM M U NITY COLLEG E AR EA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 6 .  CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capita l asset activity for the fisca l year ended June 30,  2019, was as fol lows: 

June 30, June 30, 
2018 Additions Deletions 2019 

Capita l assets, not bei ng 

depreciated 

Land 1,889,366 1,889,366 
Construction in progress 26,283,933 26,283,933 

Tota l 1,889,366 26,283,933 28,173,299 

Capita l assets, bei ng depreciated 

Land improvements 3,526,895 3,526,895 
Bui ld ings 107 ,073,465 3,358,466 - 110,431,931 
Leasehold improvements 29,651 29,651 
Eq u ipment 35,665,781 1,888,295 227, 192 37,326,884 

Tota l 146,295, 792 5,246,761 227, 192 151,315,361 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Land i m provements 1,936,016 112,555 2,048,571 
Bu i ldings 43,084,562 3,303,709 46,388,27 1 
Leasehold improvements 25,574 741 26,315 
Equipment 27,774,411 2,315,828 227, 192 29,863,047 

Tota l 72,820,563 5,732,833 227, 192 78,326,204 

Capita l  assets, net 75,364,595 25,797,861 - 101,162,456 

Capita l asset activity for the fisca l year ended J u ne 30, 2018, was as fol lows: 

June 30, June 30, 
2017 Additions Deletions 2018 

Capita l  assets, not bei ng 

depreciated 

Land 1,748,576 140,790 1,889,366 
Construction in progress 614,043 614,043 

Tota l 2,362,619 140,790 614,043 1,889,366 

Capita l assets, bei ng depreciated 

La nd improvements 3,526,895 3,526,895 
Bu i ld i ngs 99,725,408 7,348,057 - 107,073,465 
Leasehold i mprovements 29,651 29,651 
Equ ipment 32,933,215 3,216,369 483,803 35,665,781 

Tota l 136,215,169 10,564,426 483,803 146,295, 792 
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NOTE 6 .  

NOTE 7 .  

SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

CAPITAL ASSETS (Conti n ued) 
June 30, June 30, 

2017 Additions Deletions 2018 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Land improvements 1,822,860 113,156 1,936,016 
Bui ldings 40,127,869 2,956,693 43,084,562 
Leasehold improvements 24,833 741 25,574 
Equipment 25,790,071 2,384,860 400,520 27,774,411 

Tota l 67,765,633 5,455,450 400,520 72,820,563 

Capital assets, net 70,812, 155 5,249,766 697,326 75,364,595 

ACCRU ED SALAR I ES 

Accrued sa la ries for the fisca l yea rs ended J u ne 30,  2019 a nd 2018 ,  were composed of 
the fol lowing: 

Accrued sa la ries 
Accrued compensated a bsences 

2 0 19 2018 

376, 130 
2 ,611,282 

796,662 
2,335,461 

2 , 9 8 7 ,412 3 , 13 2 , 123 

NOTE 8 .  LONG-TERM DEBT 

Long-term debt activity for the yea r ended J u n e  30,  2019 is summa rized as fol lows: 

Bala nce Ba la nce 
7/1/18 Proceeds Payments 6/30/19 

Tax Supported Certificates of 
Pa rticipation, Series 2018 58,375,000 58,375,000 

Faci l ities Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2018 19,500,000 19,500,000 

Prem iums and d iscou nts, net 2, 190, 184 5,044 74,244 2, 120,984 
Compensated absences 2,335,461 2,002,388 1,726,567 2,611,282 

62,900,645 21,507 ,432 1,800,811 82,607 ,266 

Certificates of Pa rtic iQation 

Southeast Com m u n ity Col lege Tax-Su pported Certificates of Partic i pation ("COPS") ,  Series 
2018,  were issued J u ne 7, 2018,  to fi nance a portion of the cost of constructi ng, acq u i ring, 
a nd eq u i ppi ng certa in  bu i ld ings a nd related improvement to the Col lege's campuses in the 
a mount of $ 58,375 ,000.  The Certificates of Partic ipation  have the net effect of creating a 
sa le a nd leaseback of certa i n  Col lege property. Payments a re made semia n nua l ly on J u ne 
15th and December 15th and inc lude pri ncipal a nd i nterest ra nging from 3% to 5% over the 
l ife of the COPS. The COPS were issued at a premium of $2 , 195,062 which is a mortized 
over the l ife of the COPS. At J u ne 30, 2019 ,  the Trustee held $55,930,013 on deposit for 
the benefit of the Col lege for a pproved expend itu res re lating to the Project. The COPS are 
secu red by a nd wi l l  be repa id by levying of property taxes i n  such amounts to service the 
debt obl igations. 
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEGE AREA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 8.  LONG-TERM D EBT (Contin ued) 

Future maturities of the COPS a re d ue as fo l lows: 

Yea rs End i ng 
June 30, Pri nc ipa l  

2020 
2021 1,165,000 
2022 1,200,000 
2023 1,260,000 
2024 1,300,000 

2025 - 2029 7 ,390,000 
2030 - 2034 9,320,000 
2035 - 2039 11,080,000 
2040 - 2044 13,135,000 
2045 - 2047 12 ,525,000 

58,375,000 

Fac i l ities Revenue Bonds 

I nterest Total 

2 ,316,519 2 ,3 16,519 
2 ,299,044 3,464,044 
2 ,251,569 3,451,569 
2 ,202,669 3,462,669 
2 , 164,269 3,464,269 
9 ,836,344 17,226,344 
7 ,904, 184 17,224,184 
6 ,143,872 17,223,872 
4,040,563 17, 175,563 
1, 129 ,502 13,654,502 

40,288,535 98,663,535 

Southeast Com mun ity Col lege Fac i l ities Revenue Bonds, Series 2018 were issued Sep­
tem ber 19, 2018, to finance a portion of the cost of constructing, acq u i ring, and equ i p­
ping and fu rn ish ing new student housi ng and d i n i ng faci l ities at the Col lege's Beatrice 
Cam pus and new student housing faci l ities at the Col lege's M i lford Ca m pus. Payments 
are made sem iann ua l ly on J u ne 15th and December 15th and inc l ude pri nc ipa l  a nd i n­
terest ranging from 3% to 5% over the l ife of the revenue bonds. At J u ne 30,  2019, the 
Trustee held $ 8,667 ,285 on deposit for the benefit of the Col lege for a pproved expend i­
tu res relati ng to the Project. The revenue bonds a re secured by and  wi l l  be repa i d  a 
gross pledge of the revenues from the operation of the fac i l ities. 

Futu re maturities of revenue bonds a re d ue as fo l lows: 

Yea rs Ending 
June 30,  Princ ipa l  I nterest Total 

2020 405,000 723 ,475 1,128,475 
2021 415,000 715,375 1,130,375 
2022 425,000 702,925 1,127,925 
2023 440,000 690,17 5  1,130,175 
2024 450,000 676,975 1,126,975 

2025 - 2029 2 ,475,000 3 ,173,375 5,648,375 
2030 - 2034 2 ,950,000 2 ,696, 150 5 ,646,150 
2035 -" 2039 3 ,545,000 2,096,875 5,641,875 
2040 - 2044 4,295,000 1,348,800 5,643,800 
2045 - 2048 4, 100,000 418,000 4,5 18,000 

19,500,000 13,242 , 125 32,742,125 

Accrued com pensated a bsences at  J u ne 30,  2019 and 2018, are $2 ,335,461 and 
$2,611,282, respective ly, a nd a re expected to be pa id out ratably or ta ken over the next 
two years. 
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 9.  SCHOLARSH I P  ALLOWANCES 

Scholarsh ip  a l lowances consist of the fol lowing: 

1. Tu ition wa ivers, i nstitutiona l 
2 .  Tuition wa ivers, statutory ( reserves a nd wa r orphan)  
3 .  Gra nt fu nds (PELL, SEOG, NSG) credited to student accounts to offset tu ition ,  fees, 

room and board, and bookstore charges 
4. Residence ha l l  renta l wa iver for residence ha l l  assistants 

Scholarsh ip  a l lowan ces for fiscal years ended June 30 were as fol lows: 

Tu ition and fees 
Room and  boa rd 
Bookstore 

NOTE 10. EXPENSES BY FU NCTIONAL CATEGORY 

2019 

5 ,256,803 
723,671 
858,998 

6 ,839,472 

2018 

6,568,435 
663,223 
959,660 

8, 191,318 

Expenses for the fi nancia l statements a re presented by natu ra l  c lassificatio n  (personnel  
services, operating expense, travel ,  and expensed ca pita l assets) .  Both NACUBO and 
GASB have suggested that for h istorica l pu rposes expenses a lso be presented by func­
tiona l  classifications. 

Expenses by fu nctiona l classification for the fisca l years ended June 30 a re as fo l lows: 

2019 2018 
Ed ucation and genera l  

I nstruction 46,467,175 46,609,369 
Academic su pport 8,170,721 7 ,644,765 
Student services 5,000,217 5 ,207 ,354 
I nstitutiona l  support 18,223,940 17,593,710 
Physical p lant 15,098,882 12,565,698 
Depreciation 5,732 ,833 5,455,451 
Student fi na nc ia l  a id  4, 719,227 3,47 1,380 

Auxi l i a ry enterprises 5,640,943 8,613,953 

109,053,938 107 ,16 1,680 
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 11. RETI REM ENT PLAN 

NOTE 12 . 

The Col lege provides pension benefits for its employees through a defi ned contri bution 
pla n. I n  a defi ned contribution plan ,  benefits depend solely on a mounts contri buted to 
the p lan ,  p lus investment ea rnings. Effective January 1, 2009, a l l  employees may partici­
pate on a vol unta ry basis in the reti rement plan .  Al l permanent employees who a re work­
ing a m i n i m u m  of three-fourths fu l l  ti me a re requ i red to pa rticipate when they reach the 
age of 30. For em ployees working a m i n i m u m  of three-fou rths t ime, the Col l ege matches 
employee contributions from 2 .0% to 8.5% of the employee's gross a nnua l  salary for a l l  
employees covered by the Facu lty Association Ba rga in ing U n it. For a l l  othe r  employees, 
the Col lege matches employee contr ibutions from 2 .0% to 9 .0% of the emp loyee's gross 
annua l  sa lary. The Col lege does not match a ny contributions for employees working less 
than three-fou rths time. The partic ipa nts are 100% vested u po n  contributi n g  to the p lan .  

The Col lege's tota l payro l l ,  covered payro l l ,  contributions, and contri butions as a percent­
age of covered payro l ls for the yea rs ended June 30 were as fo l lows: 

2019 2018 

Total payro l l  56, 124,696 5 5,096,619 

Covered payro l l  for em ployees el igib le for 
Col lege match 47,876,822 46,544,348 

Employer contri butions 3,303,211 3,184,720 

Employer contri butions as a percentage 
of covered payro l l  6.90% 6.84% 

COM M ITM ENTS 

As of June  30, 2019 and 2018, the Col lege had $50,840,969 and $20,009,346 in  
comm itments on construction contracts. 

NOTE 13. RELATED PARTIES 

The Col lege is the benefic iary of a Fou ndation which provides support for the Col lege by 
way of scholarsh ips and other d i rect resources. The Col lege contracts to provide the 
Foundation with l i mited services and office space without charge i n  exchan ge for the 
su pport the Col lege receives. Scholarsh ips and other d i rect resou rces provided by the 
Foundation a re rem itted to the Col lege. Amou nts for the fisca l yea rs ended J une 30, 
2019 and 2018, tota led $4,125,456 and $ 1,82 1,905, respectively. 
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 14. BUDG ET PROCESS 

Prior to August 1, the Col lege's management a nd Board of Governors prepa red a pro­
posed operati ng budget on the cash basis for the Genera l ,  Restricted,  a nd P lant Fu nds 
for the fisca l year com mencing Ju ly 1. The budget i nc ludes proposed expen d itu res and 
the means of financ ing them.  

Pub l ic  hearings a re conducted at  a pub l ic  meeting to obta i n  taxpayer com m ents. After 
the pub l ic hearings,  the budget is lega l ly adopted by the Board of Governors th rough 
passage of a resol ution at the September Board meeti ng. 

Tota l expend itu res may not lega l ly exceed tota l a ppropriations and a ppropriations lapse 
at yea r  end .  

NOTE 15 .  R ISK MANAG EM ENT 

The Col lege is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, and destruc­
tion of assets; bus iness i nterru ption;  employee inj uries and i l l nesses; natu ra l d isasters; 
and employee hea lth and accident benefits. Commercia l i nsura nce coverage is purchased 
for employee group hea lth a nd accident benefits. Settled cla i ms have not exceeded th is 
commercial  coverage in a ny of the three preced ing yea rs. 

The Col lege has jo ined with five of the other Nebraska com m u n ity col leges to form the 
Nebraska Com m u n ity Col lege I nsura nce Trust, a pub l ic  entity risk pool currently operating 
as a common risk management and insura nce program for its mem bers.  The Col lege pays 
a n  an nua l  contri bution to the Trust for its pooled self-i nsura nce coverage of property, l iabi l­
ity, workers' compensation,  a nd associated excess coverages. The Trust self-i nsu res to var­
ious levels for a l l  categories of covered risk and purchases excess coverage for cla ims i n  
excess of the self- insu red l im its. I f  the Loss Fu nd i s  exha usted , the Col leges may b e  as­
sessed for add itional  costs. The i nsurance yea r  ended J u ne 30, 2019,  was the Trust's 
twenty-first yea r of operations. I n  May 2019, the Board of Di rectors of the Trust declared 
a d ividend of $7 4,934 to be used to offset tota l contri butions for the 2020 i nsurance year. 
The Col lege a ntici pates no futu re l ia bi l ities for add itiona l  i ncu rred losses for a l l  previous 
years.  

NOTE 16.  SUBS EQUENT EVENTS 

I n  prepa ring the financ ia l  statements, the Col lege has eva luated events a nd transactions 
for potentia l  recognition  or d isclosure through November 15, 2019, the date the financial  
statements were ava i la ble to be issued . 
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ACCOM PANYING I N FORMATION 



State a id 
Property taxes 
Tuition 
Other i ncome 
(Add )  to/use cash reserves 

SOUTH EAST COM M U NllY COLLEG E AREA 
SCH EDU LES OF G EN ERAL FU N D  R EVENUES 

BU DG ETARY BASIS 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AN D 2018 

2019 2018 

27 ,372,774 
40, 662,058 
19,414, 750 

553,588 
(2 ,048, 778) 

85,954,392 

2 7,460,870 
41,259,669 
19,467, 175 

1,035 ,285 
( 4,415,641) 

84,807 ,358 

The revenues in  this schedu le  are presented on the sa me basis as the Col lege's Genera l  Fund 
budget and  a re not on a GASS basis of accou nti ng. I n  particu lar, tu ition is not red uced for 
scholarsh ip  a l lowa nces from gra nts and  some other fu nds. 

PROPERlY VALUATION AN D PROPERlY TAX REVENU E  

The property va luation for Southeast Com m u n ity Col lege Area a s  reported by the Cou nty Assessor 
i n  late August 2019 for use i n  property tax revenue for J u ne 30, 2020, was $61,058, 170, 2 76. 
The Genera l  Fund property tax rate for J u ne 30, 2020, is 7 .37 cents per $ 100 of va l uation . 

The property va l uation for Southeast Com m u n ity Col lege Area as reported by the Cou nty Assessor 
in late August 2018 for use in property tax reven ue for J u ne 30, 2019, was $59,413,6 73, 703. 
The Genera l  Fu nd  property tax rate for J u ne 30, 2019, is 7 .07 cents per $ 100 of va l uation .  
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
SCH EDU LES OF GENERAL FU N D  EXPEN DITU RES - BUDG ETARY BASIS 

YEARS ENDED J U N E  30, 2019 AN D 2018 

PROG RAM CLASSI FICATION STRUCTU RE 

INSTRUCTION 
Personnel  services 
Operati ng expenses 
Travel 
Eq u i pment 

ACADEM IC SU PPORT 
Person nel services 
Operating expenses 
Travel 
Eq u ipment 

STU DENT SERVICE 
Person nel services 
Operati ng expenses 
Travel 
Eq u ipment 

I NSTITUTIONAL ADM I N ISTRATION 
Personnel  services 
Operating expenses 
Travel 
Eq u i pment 

PHYSICAL PLANT OPERATIONS 
Personnel  services 
Operati ng expenses 
Travel 
Eq u i pment 

STU DENT FI NANCIAL SU PPORT 
Operating expenses 
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2019 2018 

40, 181,962 39,860,883 
2 , 186,661 2,244,626 

104, 100 108,270 
1,251, 180 2,092 ,462 

43, 723 ,903 44,306,241 

6,976,433 
895,004 

33,765 
322,687 

8,227 ,889 

3 ,067 ,195 
47 1,420 

28, 124 
39,478 

3,606, 2 17 

11,804, 163 
6 ,182,939 

84,902 
725, 761 

18,797 ,765 

5,092 , 160 
4,907 , 298 

4,511 
1,470,783 

11,474,752 

123,866 

6,590,888 
750,159 

26, 765 
326,955 

7,694, 767 

3 ,120,615 
453,747 

28,817 
85,735 

3,688,914 

11,176,154 
6,2 15,435 

58,267 
675,706 

18,125,562 

4,874,279 
5,038,272 
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975,922 

10,888,508 

103,366 



SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
SCH EDU LES OF GEN ERAL FU N D  EXPEND ITU RES 

YEARS ENDED J U N E  30, 2019 AN D 2018 

2019 2018 
G RAN D TOTAL FOR COLLEGE 

Person nel  services 
Operati ng expenses 
Travel 
Eq u i pment 

67 , 12 1,913 
14, 767, 188 

255,402 
3 ,809,889 

85,954,392 

65,622 ,819 
14,805 ,605 

222 ,154 
4, 156,780 

84,807,358 

The expend itu res in this sched ule are presented on the same basis as the Col lege's G enera l  Fun d  
budget and  a re not o n  a GASS basis of accou nti ng. I n  particu lar, eq u i pment i s  shown as an  
expense. 
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
SCH EDULE OF EXPENDITU RES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED J U N E  30, 2019 

Federa l G rantor/Pass-Through Grantor Pass-Th rough 
Progra m Title Identification Nu mber 

U.S. Degartment of Education 
Student Financial  Assistance Cluster 

PELL Grant Progra m 
Federa l  Di rect Loan 
Federa l  Work-Study Program 
Federa l  Su pplemental Educationa l 

Opportu n ity Gra nt Program 

Tota l Student Financial  Assistance 
Cluster 

TRIO Cluster 
TRI O  Su pport Services 
TR IO Upward Bound 

Tota l TRIO Cl uster 

CCAM PIS 

Pass-Th rough Progra ms From: 

Nebraska Department of Ed ucation 

Ad u lt Basic Ed ucation 19-2-AEF-08-00-94500 

Vocational  Ed ucation 19-6701-00-60-094-5000 
Vocational  Ed ucation 19-67 00-00-06-00-0006 

Total progra m 

Tota l U .S.  Department of 
Ed ucation 

U .S. Degartment of Labor 

T MCCCT Grants 
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Federa l  Federa l 
CFDA Expend i-

N u m ber tu res 

84.063 9,052,841 
84.268 14, 230,287 
84.033 235,724 

84.007 3 28,513 

23,847 ,365 

84.042 2 15,758 
84.047 258,993 

474,751 

84.335 108,350 

84.002 384,237 

84.048 853 ,718 
84.048 163,828 

1,017,546 

1,401,783 

25,832,249 

17 .282 114, 104 



SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
SCH EDULE OF EXPENDITU RES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED J U N E  30, 2019 

Federa l Granter/Pass-Through Granter 
Program Title 

U.S. Department of Hea lth and H uman Services 

Substance Abuse and Mental Hea lth 
Services Projects of Regiona l and 
National  Sign ifica nce 

Pass-Through Programs From: 

Nebraska Department of Hea lth and 
H u man Services 

Pass-Th rough 
Identification Number 

Federa l Federa l  
CFDA Expendi-

Number tu res 

93.243 41,988 

Hea lth Education Ladderi ng Progra m 90FX0040-03-00-SCC-18/19 93.093 
Refugee and Entrant Assista nce - ESL None 93.576 

205,887 
21,760 

Tota l U .S.  Depa rtment of Hea lth 
and Hu man Services 

Un ited States Department of Agricu ltu re 

Distance Learn ing and Telemed ic ine Grant 

Nuclea r Regu latory Commission 

U .S. N uclear Regulatory Commission 
Scholarsh ip  and Fel lowship Progra m 

TOTAL EXPENDITU RES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

See accompanyi ng notes to schedu le of expenditures of federa l  awards. 
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2 69,635 

10.855 542,384 

77.008 117,575 

26,875,947 



SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
NOTES TO SCH EDU LE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR EN DED J U N E  30, 2019 

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompa nyi ng schedu le  of expend itu res of federa l  awa rds (the Sched u le) i nc l udes 
the federa l award activity of the Southeast Com m u n ity Col lege Area under progra ms of the 
federa l government for the year ended June 30, 2019. The i nformation in th is Sched ule is 
presented in accordance with the requ i rements of Title 2 U .S .  Code of Federal Regulations 

(CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Require­

ments for Federal Awards ( U n iform G u ida nce) . Because the Schedu le  presents on ly a se­
lected portion of the operations of the Southeast Commun ity Col lege Area it is not i ntended 
to and does not present the financia l  position ,  changes in net assets, or cash flows of the 
Southeast Commun ity Col lege Area . 

NOTE 2 .  SUM MARY OF SIG N I FICANT ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES 

Expend itu res reported on the Schedule a re reported on the accrua l  basis of accounti ng. 
Such expend itures are recogn ized fol lowing the cost pri nc ip les conta ined in the U n iform 
G u ida nce, where in  certa i n  types of expend itures are not a l lowa ble or a re l i m ited as to re­
i m bursement. 

NOTE 3 .  SUBRECI P IENTS 

Of the federa l  expend itu res presented i n  the Schedu le, the Southeast Com m u n ity Col lege 
Area provided no federa l awards to subrec ip ients. 

NOTE 4. I N D I R ECT COST RATE 

The Southeast Com m u n ity Col lege Area has elected not to use the 10% de m i n i m is i nd i rect 
cost rate a l lowed u nder the Un iform G u idance. 

38 



SOUTH EAST COM M U NITY COLLEG E AREA 
SFA PROG RAMS - AU DIT I N FORMATION 

LEAD AU DITOR:  Kerry A .  G ustafsson Permit No.  49722 

TELEPHONE NO: 

Dana F. Cole & Compa ny, LLP 
1248 0 Street, Su ite 500 
L inco ln ,  Nebraska 68508 

402 .4 79 .9300 

The aud it was performed between September 16, 2019 and September 19, 2019,  at the institu­
tion 's faci l ities as fol lows: 

Location 

Li ncoln ,  Nebraska 

Beatrice, Nebraska 

M i lford , Nebraska 

I nstitution's Accred iti ng Orga n ization :  

The H igher Lea rn i ng Com mission 

Description of Fac i l ity 

Adm i n istrative a nd Student 
Financia l  Aid offices 

Adm i n istrative and Student 
F inancia l  Aid offices 

Ad m i n istrative a nd Student 
F inancial  Aid offices 

The institution does not uti l ize an SFA Consu ltant/Servicer. 

Dates Visited 

Septe m ber 16, 2019 
to 

Septe m ber 19, 2019 

Septe m ber 16, 2019 
to 

Septe m ber 19, 2019 

Septe m ber 16, 2019 
to 

Septe m ber 19, 2019 

Records for the accou nti ng a nd admin istration of the SFA programs are located at the Busi ness and 
Student Fi nancia l Assistance offices in  the Admin istration Bu i l d i ng at  each cam pus location .  
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
SCH EDULE OF CAFETERIA AN D DORM ITORY BALANCES AN D ACTIVITY 

YEAR ENDED J U N E  30, 2019 

ASSETS 
Accou nts receiva ble 
I nventories 
Cap ita l assets, net 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABI LITI ES 
Accou nts payable 
Due to other funds 
Accrued sa laries 
Accrued i nterest 

TOTAL LIABI LITI ES 

N ET POSITION 

OPERATI NG R EVEN U ES 
Auxi l ia ry revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Person nel services 
Operati ng expenses 
Ca pita l assets, not capita l ized 
Depreciation 

Tota l operating expenses 

OPERATI NG I NCOM E  

NONOPERATI NG R EVENUES (EXPENSES) 
I nvestment i ncome 
I nterest on i ndebted ness 

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

DECREASE I N  N ET POSITION 

N ET POSITION ,  begi n n i ng of yea r  

N ET POSITION ,  e n d  of yea r  

40 

1,528 
2 , 2 13 

17 ,826,248 

1 7 ,829,989 

742 
1 1,619,207 

23,697 
2 14,565 

11,858,211 

5,971,778 

1,346, 703 

505,602 
489,187 

11,065 
251,590 

1,257,444 

89,259 

234,707 
(537 ,981) 

(303,274) 

(214,015) 

6 ,185,793 

5 ,97 1,778 



SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
SCH EDULE OF BOOKSTORE BALANCES AN D ACTIVITY 

YEAR ENDED J U N E  30, 2019 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash eq u iva lents 
Accou nts receiva ble 
Due from other funds 
I nventories 
Capita l assets, net 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABI LITI ES 
Accou nts paya ble 
Accrued sala ries 

TOTAL LIABI LITI ES 

N ET POSITION 

OPERATI NG R EVENUES 
Auxi l ia ry revenues 

OPERA Tl NG EXPENSES 
Person nel  services 
Operating expenses 
Travel 
Capita l assets, not capita l ized 
Depreciation 

Tota l operating expenses 

I NCREASE IN NET POSITION 

N ET POSITION ,  begi n n i ng of yea r 

N ET POSIT ION,  end of yea r 

41 

2 ,614 
7 , 665 

788,820 
1,568, 118 

635,473 

3,002,690 

1,291 
39,501 

40,792 

2,961,898 

4,942 ,462 

652,922 
3,830,898 

5 ,827 
5 , 185 

37,381 

4,532,213 

410,249 

2,551,649 

2,961,898 



SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
SCH EDU LE O F  STU DENT ACTIVITI ES BALANCES AND ACTIVITY 

YEAR ENDED J U N E  30, 2019 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash eq u iva lents 
Due from other  funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIAB I LITI ES 
Accrued sa laries 
Deferred revenue 

TOTAL LIABIL ITI ES 

N ET POSITION 

OPERATI NG REVEN UES 
Student service fees 

O PERATI NG EXPENSES 
Person nel services 
Operating expenses 
Travel 
Capita l assets, not ca pita l ized 

Tota l operating expenses 

OPERATI NG I NCOM E  

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
I nvestment i ncome 
Tra nsfers from other fu nds 

Net nonoperating revenues 

I NCREASE I N  N ET POSITION 

N ET POSITION ,  begi n n i ng of yea r  

N ET POSITION,  end of year 

42 

152, 199 
751, 156 

903,355 

5,683 
285,678 

291,361 

611,994 

546,330 

266,601 
134,328 

3,440 
1,023 

405,392 

140,938 

2,856 
688,568 

691,424 

832,362 

(220,368) 

611,994 



DANA F. COLE 
& CO M PANYLLP 
CERTI FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

REPORT ON I NTERNAL CONTROL OVER FI NANCIAL REPO RTI NG 
AN D ON COM PLIANCE AND OTH ER MATIERS BASED O N  AN 

AU D IT OF FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS PERFORM ED IN ACCOR DANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Governors 
Southeast Commun ity Col lege Area 
Lincol n ,  Nebraska 

We have a ud ited , i n  accorda nce with a ud iti ng standards genera l ly accepted i n  the U n ited States of 
America a nd the standards a ppl ica ble  to financ ia l  audits conta ined i n  Governmental Auditing Stand­
ards, issued by the Com ptro l ler  Genera l of the U n ited States, the financia l statements of Southeast 
Comm u n ity Col lege Area, as of and for the year ended J u ne 30, 2019, a nd the related n otes to the 
financ ia l  statements, which col lectively comprise Southeast Comm u n ity Col lege Area's basic fi nan­
c ia l  statements, a nd have issued our  report thereon dated November 15, 2019. 

Internal Control Over Fi nancial Reporti ng 

In p lann i ng and perform i ng our  aud it of the fina ncial  statements, we considered Southeast Commun ity 
Col lege Area's i nterna l control over fi nancia l  reporti ng ( i nternal contro l )  to determ ine the aud it proce­
d u res that a re appropriate in the c i rcu msta nces for the purpose of express ing o u r  opi n io ns on the fi­
nancia l  statements, but not for the purpose of expressing a n  op in ion on the effectiven ess of Southeast 
Com m u nity Col lege Area's i nterna l  contro l .  Accord i ngly, we do not express a n  op in ion o n  the effective­
ness of the Southeast Comm u n ity Col lege Area's i nternal contro l .  

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does n ot a l low man­
agement or employees, i n  the normal  cou rse of perform ing the i r  assigned fu nctions, to prevent, o r  
detect and correct, m isstatements on  a timely basis. A material weakness i s  a defic ien cy, or  a com­
b ination of deficiencies, i n  i nterna l control such that there is a reasonable poss ib i l ity that a materia l  
m isstatement of the entity's financia l  statements wi l l  not be prevented , or  detected and corrected on 
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a defic iency, or  a combination  of defic iencies ,  i n  i nterna l  
control that is less severe tha n  a mater ia l  weakness, yet i mportant enough to merit attention by 
those cha rged with governance. 

Our consideration of i nterna l  control was for the l im ited purpose described i n  the fi rst paragraph of 
th is section  a nd was not designed to identify a l l  deficiencies i n  i nternal control that m ight be materia l  
weaknesses or sign ificant deficiencies .  G iven these l i m itations d u ring our  aud it, we d i d  not identify 
a ny defic iencies i n  i nternal control that we consider to be materia l wea knesses. However, materia l  
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified . 
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Com pl iance and Other Matters 

Management's Responsib i l ity for Compl iance 

Com pl ia nce with certa in  provisions and laws, regu lations, contracts, and gra nt agreements re lated to 
Southeast Commun ity Col lege Area is the responsib i l ity of the Col lege's management. 

Auditors' Responsib i l ity 

As part of obta in i ng reasonable assu rance a bout whether Southeast Com m u n ity Col lege Area's fi nan­
cia l statements a re free of materia l  m isstatement, we performed tests of its comp l iance with certa in  
provisions of laws, regu lations, contracts, a nd gra nt agreements, noncompl iance with which cou ld  
have a d i rect and material  effect on the determ ination of fi nanc ia l  statementamounts. However, 
provid i ng an opi n ion on com pl iance with those provisions was not an objective of our a ud it, a nd ac­
cord i ngly, we do not express such a n  opi n ion.  The resu lts of our  tests d isc losed no i nstance of non­
com pl iance or  other matters that a re requ ired to be reported u nder Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of th is Report 

The purpose of th is report is solely to descri be the scope of our testing of i nterna l control and com pl i­
ance and  the resu lts of that testing, and not to provide an  opin ion on the effectiveness of Southeast 
Com m un ity Col lege Area's i nternal  control or on compl iance. Th is report is a n  i ntegra l part of an aud it 
performed i n  accorda nce with Government Auditing Standards i n  consideri ng Southeast Comm u n ity 
Col lege Area's i nterna l control and  compl ia nce. Accord i ngly, th is comm unication is not s u ita ble for 
a ny other purpose. 

L inco ln ,  Nebraska 
November 15, 2019 
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DANA F. COLE 
& CO M PAN.YLLP 
CERT I FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

I N D EPENDENT AU DITORS' REPORT ON COM PLIANCE FOR 
EACH MAJOR PROG RAM AN D ON I NTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COM PLIANCE R EQU I RED BY THE U N I FO R M  G U I DANCE 

To the Boa rd of Governors 
Southeast Commun ity Col lege Area 
Linco ln ,  Nebraska 

Report on Compl iance for Each Major Program 

We have a ud ited Southeast Comm u n ity Col lege Area's compl iance with the types of com pl iance re­
q u i rements described i n  the OMB Comp l ia nce Supplement that cou ld have a d i rect and mater ia l  ef­
fect on each of the Col lege's major federa l  programs for the year ended J u ne 30, 2019 .  Southeast 
Com mun ity Col lege Area's major federa l  programs a re identified in the sum ma ry of a ud itors' resu lts 
section of the accom pa nying sched u le of fi nd ings and q uestioned costs. 

Management's Responsibi l ity 

Management is responsible for comp l ia nce with the requ i rements of federa l  statutes, regu lations, 
and the terms a nd cond itions of its federa l  awa rds appl ica ble to its federa l  programs. 

Auditors' Responsibi l ity 

Our responsib i l ity is to express a n  opin ion on comp l ia nce for each of Southeast Com m u n ity Col lege 
Area's major federa l  programs based on our  a ud it of the types of compl iance requ i rements referred 
to above. We conducted our a ud it of com pl iance in accordance with a ud it ing standa rds genera l ly 
accepted i n  the U n ited States of America; the standards appl icable to financ ia l  a ud its conta ined i n  
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrol ler  Genera l of the U n ited States; and the 
a ud it requ i rements of Title 2 U .S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administra­
tive Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards ( U n iform Gu idance). 
Those standards a nd the U n iform Gu ida nce req u i re that we plan a nd perform the aud it to obtai n  
reasonable assura nce a bout whether noncom pl iance with the types of com pl iance req u i rements re­
ferred to a bove that cou ld have a d i rect a nd materia l  effect on a major federa l  program occurred . An 
aud it i ncl udes exa m i n i ng, on a test basis, evidence a bout the Southeast Com m u n ity Col lege Area's 
compl iance with those requ i rements a nd perform ing such other procedu res as we considered nec­
essary i n  the c i rcumstances. 

We bel ieve that our  aud it provides a reasona ble basis for our  op in ion on com pl iance with each major 
progra m .  However, our a ud it does not provide a legal determ i nation on the Southeast Comm u n ity 
Col lege Area's compl iance. 
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Opin ion on Each Major Progra m 

I n  our  op in ion ,  Southeast Com mun ity Col lege Area compl ied ,  i n  a l l  materia l respects, with the com­
p l ia nce req u i rements referred to a bove that cou ld have a d i rect a nd materia l  effect on each of its 
major federa l  programs for the year  ended J une 30, 2019. 

Report on I nterna l Control Over Com pl iance 

Management of Southeast Comm un ity Col lege Area is responsible for estab l ish ing and ma inta i n i ng 
effective i nternal contro l over compl ia nce with requ i rements of laws, regu lations, contracts, a nd 
grants a pp l icable to federa l  programs. I n  plan n ing and perform ing our a ud it, we considered South­
east Com mun ity Col lege Area's interna l  control over com pl iance with req u i rements tha t  cou ld have a 
d i rect and materia l  effect on a major federa l  program i n  order to determ i ne our  a ud itin g  proced ures 
for the purpose of expressing our  op in ion on i nterna l  contro l over compl ia nce in accorda nce with the 
U n iform G u ida nce, but not for the purpose of expressing an opi n ion on the effectiveness of i nterna l  
control over compl ia nce. Accord ingly, w e  do not express an  opin ion on the effectiveness of Southeast 
Com mun ity Col lege Area's i nterna l  contro l over compl iance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
com pl iance does not a l low management or employees, in the normal  cou rse of perform i ng the i r  as­
signed fu nctions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompl iance with a type of com p l iance req u i re­
ment of a federa l  program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance 
is a defic iency, or com bi nation of defic iencies, in i nterna l contro l over com pl iance, such that there is a 
reasonable possib i l ity that materia l  noncompl iance with a type of compl iance requ i rement of a federa l  
program wi l l  not be  prevented, or detected a nd corrected , on a ti mely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a com bination of defic iencies, i n  i nterna l contro l 
over compl iance with a type of comp l iance requ i rement of a federa l  program that is less severe than 
a materia l  weakness in  i nternal  contro l over comp l iance ,  yet i mportant enough to merit attention by 
those cha rged with governance. 

Our  consideration of i nterna l control over compl ia nce was for the l im ited pu rpose descri bed i n  the 
fi rst pa ragra ph a nd was not designed to identify a l l  defic iencies in i nterna l control over comp l ia nce 
that m ight be materia l weaknesses or sign ificant defic iencies.  We d id not identify a ny defic iencies 
i n  interna l  contro l over com pl iance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defi ned a bove. 
However, materia l  wea knesses may exist that have not been identified . 

The pu rpose of this report on i nterna l  control over com pl ia nce is solely to describe the scope of our  
testi ng of i nterna l control over com pl iance and the results of  our  testing based on those requ i rements 
of the U n iform Gu idance. Accord ingly, th is report is not su itable for any other purpose. 

Li nco ln ,  Nebraska 
November 15, 2019 
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SECTION I .  

SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
SCH EDULE OF FI ND I NGS AN D QU ESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED J U N E  30, 2019 

SUM MARY OF AU DITORS' R ESU LTS 

F inanc ia l  Statements 

Type of aud itors' report issued: 

I nternal  contro l over financia l  reporti ng: 

Materia l  weakness identified: 

Sign ificant defic iencies identified 
that a re not considered to be 
materia l  wea knesses: 

Noncom pl iance matter to the fina ncia l  
statements d isclosed : 

Federa l  Awards 

I nternal  contro l over major programs: 

Material  wea kness identified : 

Sign ificant defic iencies identified 
that a re not considered to be 
materia l  weaknesses: 

Type of aud itors' report issued on 
compl iance for major programs: 

Any aud it fi nd i ngs d isclosed that are 
requ i red to be reported in  accord­
a nce with 2 CFR Section 200.516(a):  

Identification of major programs: 

PELL Gra nt Program 
Federa l D i rect Loa n Progra m 
Federa l Supplementa l Educationa l 

Opportun ity G ra nt 
Federa l Work-Study 
Postsecondary Ed ucation Scholarsh ips 

for Vetera n 's Dependents 

Dol lar  threshold used to d istingu ish 
between type A a nd type B programs: 

Aud itee qua l ified as a low-risk a ud itee: 
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U n mod ified 

_Yes _x_No 

_Yes _x_None reported 

_Yes _x_No 

_Yes _x_No 

_Yes _x_None reported 

U n mod ified 

_Yes _x_No 

84.063 
84.268 

84.007 
84.033 

84.408 

$750,000 

-1L_Yes No 



SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
SCH EDULE OF FI N D I NGS AN D QU ESTIO N ED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED J U N E  30, 2019 

SECTION I I .  F I NANCIAL STATEMENT FI N D I NG 

None reported . 

SECTION I l l . FEDERAL AWARD FI N D I NGS AN D QUESTIONED COSTS 

None reported .  
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SOUTH EAST COM M U N ITY COLLEG E AREA 
SUM MARY SCH EDULE OF PR IOR AUDIT FI N D I NGS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

There were no  prior year  aud it find ings a nd recommendations that requ ired reso lution  for the year 
ended June 30, 2018. 
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